
 

 

North Devon Council 
Brynsworthy Environment Centre 
Barnstaple 
North Devon   EX31 3NP 
 
K. Miles 

Chief Executive. 
 

 
 

 POLICY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
 
A meeting of the  Policy Development Committee will be held in the Barum Room - 
Brynsworthy on THURSDAY, 18TH JULY, 2019 at 2.00 pm. 
 
(NOTE:  A location plan for the Brynsworthy Environment Centre is attached to the 
agenda front pages.  There are limited car parking spaces in the Visitors parking 
area.  If no spaces are available, please find an alternative space.  Please ensure 
that you enter your name and car registration details in the book in front of the 
entrance door) 
 
 
Members of the Policy Development 
Committee 

Councillor D. Spear (Chairman) 

 
Councillors Barker, Campbell, Crabb, Hunt, Luggar, Mack, Roome, Walker and York 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies   

2.   To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 20th June 2019 
(attached).   

3.   Items brought forward which in the opinion of the Chairman should be considered 
by the meeting as a matter of urgency.   

4.   Declarations of Interest.   

 (Please telephone the Corporate and Community Services team to prepare a form 
for your signature before the meeting. Interests must be re-declared when the item 
is called, and Councillors must leave the room if necessary). 

 

5.   To agree the agenda between Part 'A' and Part 'B' (Confidential Restricted 
Information).   

PART 'A' 

INTERNAL ITEMS 

6.   Annual Treasury Management report 2018/19  (Pages 5 - 12) 

 Report by the Head of Resources (attached). 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 

 
2 

 

7.   Corporate Plan  (Pages 13 - 16) 

 Report by the Chief Executive (attached). 
 

PART B (CONFIDENTIAL RESTRICTED INFORMATION) 

Nil. 
 
 
 

 

If you have any enquiries about this agenda, please contact Corporate and 
Community Services, telephone 01271 388253 

 
 
 

10.07.19 
 



 
 

 
3 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

North Devon Council protocol on recording/filming at Council meetings 
 
The Council is committed to openness and transparency in its decision-making. 
Recording is permitted at Council meetings that are open to the public. The Council 
understands that some members of the public attending its meetings may not wish to be 
recorded. The Chairman of the meeting will make sure any request not to be recorded is 
respected.  
 
The rules that the Council will apply are:  
 

1. The recording must be overt (clearly visible to anyone at the meeting) and must 
not disrupt proceedings. The Council will put signs up at any meeting where we 
know recording is taking place.  

 
2. The Chairman of the meeting has absolute discretion to stop or suspend recording 

if, in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice proceedings at the meeting 
or if the person recording is in breach of these rules.  

 
3. We will ask for recording to stop if the meeting goes into ‘part B’ where the public 

is excluded for confidentiality reasons. In such a case, the person filming should 
leave the room ensuring all recording equipment is switched off. 

 
4. Any member of the public has the right not to be recorded. We ensure that 

agendas for, and signage at, Council meetings make it clear that recording can 
take place – anyone not wishing to be recorded must advise the Chairman at the 
earliest opportunity.  

 
5. The recording should not be edited in a way that could lead to misinterpretation or 

misrepresentation of the proceedings or in a way that ridicules or shows a lack of 
respect for those in the recording. The Council would expect any recording in 
breach of these rules to be removed from public view.  

 
Notes for guidance: 
 
Please contact either our Corporate and Community Services team or our 
Communications team in advance of the meeting you wish to record at so we can make 
all the necessary arrangements for you on the day.  
 
For more information contact the Corporate and Community Services team on 01271 
388253 or email memberservices@northdevon.gov.uk or the Communications Team 
on 01271 388278, email communications@northdevon.gov.uk. 



 
 

 
4 

 

 
 
North Devon Council offices at Brynsworthy, the full address is:  
Brynsworthy Environment Centre (BEC), Roundswell,  
Barnstaple, Devon, EX31 3NP. 
 
Sat Nav postcode is EX31 3NS. 
 
At the Roundswell roundabout take the exit onto the B3232, after about ½ mile take the 
first right, BEC is about ½ a mile on the right. 
 
Drive into the site, visitors parking is in front of the main building on the left hand side.  
 
On arrival at the main entrance, please dial 8253 for Corporate and Community Services. 
 

 
 



Open 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 

 

REPORT TO: STRATEGY AND RESOURCES 

Date: 1ST JULY 2019 

TOPIC: ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 
2018/19 

REPORT BY: CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

 

1. INTRODUCTION  

1.1 The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review 
and scrutiny of treasury management policy and activities.  This report is 
important in that respect, as it provides details of the outturn position for 
treasury activities and highlights compliance with the Council’s policies 
previously approved by members.  

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1  The Committee is asked to recommend to full Council that: 

 The annual treasury management report for 2018/19 be noted; 

 The actual 2018/19 prudential and treasury indicators be approved. 

 The Section 151 Officer be delegated authority to update the Treasury 
Management Policy and Practices to reflect the recent changes to 
committee structure and overdraft arrangements   

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 
2003 to produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the 
actual prudential and treasury indicators for 2018/19. This report meets the 
requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management 
(the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities (the Prudential Code). 

3.2 During 2018/19 the minimum reporting requirements were that the full Council 
should receive the following reports: 

 an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Council 21/02/2018) 

 a mid year treasury update report (Council 16/01/2019) 

 an annual review following the end of the year describing the activity 
compared to the strategy (this report) 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



This Council confirms that it has complied with the requirements under the Code to 
give prior scrutiny to all the above treasury management reports by the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee and now the Policy Development Committee before they 
were reported to the full Council. 

 

4. REPORT 
 

4.1  The Council’s Capital Expenditure and Financing  

The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets.  These activities 
may either be: 

 Financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue resources 
(capital receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which has no resultant 
impact on the Council’s borrowing need; or 

 If insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to apply resources, 
the capital expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need.   

The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential indicators.  The 
table below shows the actual capital expenditure and how this was financed. 

 

£000   
2017/18 
Actual 

2018/19 
Estimate 

2018/19 
Actual 

Capital expenditure 2,454 5,242 4,298 

Financed in year 3,410 5,645 4,092 

Unfinanced capital 
expenditure  

(956) (403) 206 

 

4.2 The Council’s Overall Borrowing Need 

The Council’s underlying need to borrow to finance capital expenditure is termed 
the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR).   
 
Gross borrowing and the CFR - in order to ensure that borrowing levels are 
prudent over the medium term and only for a capital purpose, the Council should 
ensure that its gross external borrowing does not, except in the short term, exceed 
the total of the capital financing requirement in the preceding year (2017/18) plus 
the estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for the current 
(2018/19) and next two financial years.  This essentially means that the Council is 
not borrowing to support revenue expenditure.  This indicator allowed the Council 
some flexibility to borrow in advance of its immediate capital needs in 2018/19.  The 
table below highlights the Council’s gross borrowing position against the CFR.  The 
Council has complied with this prudential indicator. 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



£000   

31 
March 
2018 

Actual 

31 
March 
2019 

Estimate  

31 
March 
2019 

Actual 

Total CFR 5,009 4,847 4,711 

Gross borrowing 
position 

2,000 1,250 1,250 

Over / (under) funding 
of CFR 

(3,009) (3,597) (3,461) 

 Estimates from the Mid-Year Treasury Management Report 

 
The authorised limit - the authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit” 
required by s3 of the Local Government Act 2003.  Once this has been set, the 
Council does not have the power to borrow above this level.  The table below 
demonstrates that during 2018/19 the Council has maintained gross borrowing 
within its authorised limit.  
 
The operational boundary – the operational boundary is the expected borrowing 
position of the Council during the year.  Periods where the actual position is either 
below or over the boundary are acceptable subject to the authorised limit not being 
breached.  
 
Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this indicator 
identifies the trend in the cost of capital, (borrowing and other long term obligation 
costs net of investment income), against the net revenue stream. 
 

 2018/19 

Authorised limit £10.5m 

Maximum gross borrowing position during the year £2m 

Operational boundary £5.25m 

Average gross borrowing position  £1.33m 

Financing costs as a proportion of net revenue 
stream    

2.87% 

 

4.3 Treasury Position as at 31st March 2019 

At the beginning and the end of 2018/19 the Council’s treasury position was as 
follows: 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 The maturity structure of the debt portfolio was as follows: 

 
31 March 2018 

actual 

2018/19 
original 
limits 

31 March 2019 
actual 

Under 12 months  £0.75m (37.5%) 50% £0m 

12 months and within 24 
months 

£0m 60% £0.75m (60%) 

24 months and within 5 years £0.75m (37.5%) 100% £0m 

5 years and within 10 years £0.5m (25%) 100% £0.50m (40%) 

10 years and above £0m 50% £0m 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

All investments were for maturities less than one year  

 

During 2018/19, the Council made no material non-treasury investments in property 
with a view of generating an income stream.  

 

DEBT PORTFOLIO 

31/03/18 

Principal 

£000 

Rate/ 
Return 

31/03/19 

 Principal 

£000 

Rate/ 
Return 

Total debt £2,000 2.02% £1,250 2.03% 

CFR £5,009  £4,711  

Over / (under) 
borrowing 

(£3,009)  (£3,461)  

Total investments £10,735 0.34% £9,849 0.57% 

Net 
debt/(investments) 

(£8,735)  (£8,599)  

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 

Actual 

31.3.18 

£000 

 

Actual 

31.3.19 

£000 

Treasury investments   

Banks 9,560 8,560 

TOTAL TREASURY INVESTMENTS 9,560 8,560 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



  

4.4 The Strategy for 2018/19 

Investment strategy and control of interest rate risk - Investment returns 

remained low during 2018/19.   The expectation for interest rates within the treasury 
management strategy for 2018/19 was that Bank Rate would rise from 0.50% to 
0.75%.  At the start of 2018-19, and after UK GDP growth had proved disappointingly 
weak in the first few months of 2018, the expectation for the timing of this increase 
was pushed back from May to August 2018.  Investment interest rates were therefore 
on a gently rising trend in the first half of the year after April, in anticipation that the 
MPC would raise Bank Rate in August.  This duly happened at the MPC meeting on 
2 August 2018.  During this period, investments were, therefore, kept shorter term in 
anticipation that rates would be higher later in the year. 

It was not expected that the MPC would raise Bank Rate again during 2018-19 after 
August in view of the fact that the UK was entering into a time of major uncertainty 
with Brexit due in March 2019.   Value was therefore sought by placing longer term 
investments after 2 August where cash balances were sufficient to allow this.  

Investment rates were little changed during August to October but rose sharply after 
the MPC meeting of 1 November was unexpectedly hawkish about their perception of 
building inflationary pressures, particularly from rising wages.  However, weak GDP 
growth data after December, plus increasing concerns generated by Brexit, resulted 
in investment rates falling back again.  

Continued uncertainty in the aftermath of the 2008 financial crisis has promoted a 
cautious approach whereby investments would continue to be dominated by low 
counterparty risk considerations, resulting in relatively low returns compared to 
borrowing rates. 

Borrowing strategy and control of interest rate risk - During 2018-19, the 

Council maintained an under-borrowed position.  This meant that the capital 
borrowing need, (the Capital Financing Requirement), was not fully funded with loan 
debt, as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash flow was used 
as an interim measure. This strategy was prudent as investment returns were low 
and minimising counterparty risk on placing investments also needed to be 
considered. 

The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances, has 
served well over the last few years.  However, this was kept under review to avoid 
incurring higher borrowing costs in the future when this authority may not be able to 
avoid new borrowing to finance capital expenditure and/or the refinancing of maturing 
debt. 

Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution was 
adopted with the treasury operations. The Section 151 Officer therefore monitored 
interest rates in financial markets and adopted a pragmatic strategy based upon the 
following principles to manage interest rate risks  

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and 
short term rates, (e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into 
recession or of risks of deflation), then long term borrowings would have been 
postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate funding into short term 
borrowing would have been considered. 

 if it had been felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in 
long and short term rates than initially expected, perhaps arising from an 
acceleration in the start date and in the rate of increase in central rates in the 
USA and UK, an increase in world economic activity or a sudden increase in 
inflation risks, then the portfolio position would have been re-appraised.  Most 
likely, fixed rate funding would have been drawn whilst interest rates were 
lower than they were projected to be in the next few years. 

Interest rate forecasts expected only gradual rises in medium and longer term fixed 
borrowing rates during 2018/19 and the two subsequent financial years.  Variable, or 
short-term rates, were expected to be the cheaper form of borrowing over the period.   

 

 

 

 

4.5 Borrowing Outturn  

£0.75m of PWLB borrowing matured in May 2018, due to cash flow balances and 
investment concerns (both counterparty risk and low investment returns) no new 
external borrowing was undertaken during the year. Total external borrowing as at 
31st March 2019 reduced to £1.25m.   

 

The Council has not borrowed more than, or in advance of its needs, purely in order 
to profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed.  

 

No debt rescheduling was done during the year as it was not a viable option.  

 

4.6 Investment Outturn 

Investment Policy – the Council’s investment policy is governed by HMCLG 
guidance, which was implemented in the annual investment strategy approved by the 
Council on 21st February 2018.  This policy sets out the approach for choosing 
investment counterparties, and is based on credit ratings provided by the three main 
credit rating agencies, supplemented by additional market data (such as rating 
outlooks, credit default swaps, bank share prices etc.).   

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy, and the 
Council had no liquidity difficulties. 

 

Resources – the Council’s cash balances comprise revenue and capital resources 
and cash flow monies.  The Council’s core cash resources comprised as follows: 

 

Balance Sheet Resources 
(£000) 

31 March 2018 31 March 2019 

General Fund Balance 1,161 1,161 

Earmarked reserves 5,246 5,230 

Provisions 865 990 

Usable capital receipts/grants 1,987 2,389 

Total 9,259 9,770 

 

Investments held by the Council - the Council maintained an average balance of 
£16.3m of internally managed funds.  The internally managed funds earned £91,803 
interest at an average rate of return of 0.57%.  The comparable performance 
indicator is the average 7-day LIBID rate, which was 0.51%. This compares with a 
budget assumption of £60,000 investment interest. 

 

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
  
 5.1 As detailed in the report. 

 

6. CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
7. STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY 
 

7.1 This report contains no confidential information under the provisions of 
Schedule 12A of 1972 Act. 

Article or 
Appendix and 
paragraph  

Referred or 
delegated 
power?  

Part 4 
Financial 
Procedure 
Rules 
(Article 13.8)  
 
Article 4.4  

Delegated  

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

8.1 Background papers will be available for inspection and will be kept by the 
author of the report. 

 
9. STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE 
 

 9.1 The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all appropriate     
Councillors and Officers. 

 
 

 

Author: Jon Triggs, Head of Resources   Date: 8th June 2019 

Reference: T:\Technical\Adam\Treasury Management\ TM Annual Report 2018 19.doc 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



Open/ 

NORTH DEVON COUNCIL 

 

REPORT TO: POLICY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

Date: 18TH JULY 2019 

TOPIC: CORPORATE PLAN 

REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 

1 INTRODUCTION 

1.1   The Council’s previous Corporate Plan is now out of date and so following the last 
election, there is a requirement to now consider what the Council’s corporate 
priorities may be and to prepare a revised Corporate Plan. 

1.2 This report highlights what work has so far been undertaken on this. 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1   That Committee note the content of this report and the content of the draft 
Corporate Plan 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1  To ensure that the Committee agree with the draft Corporate Priorities. 

4  REPORT 

4.1 Since the last elections, officers have been working with Group Leaders and with 
the Corporate Plan Working Group to identify the priorities of the new Council. 

4.2   The priorities that have been identified are:- 

4.2.1  Financial security – The aim is to ensure that the Council is less reliant on 
central government grants and more reliant on income generated through various 
sources. 

4.2.2  This would involve exploring all avenues of income generation including 
purchasing commercial property for investment purposes and exploring trading and 
housing companies. 

4.2.3  Customer/Citizen focus – The aim would be to reduce demand on the 
Council’s services by designing our processes and systems around delivering what 
the customer/citizen wants.  The effect of this is to remove unnecessary waste from 
the systems, making them more efficient.   

Page 13

Agenda Item 7



It would also involve putting the citizen at the heart of planning for the area to 
ensure that we are delivering the communities that the community wants. 

4.2.4 Environment – The aim of this priority will be to put into effect plans to reduce 
our own environmental footprint and to work with the community to do likewise.  It 
will also set out our objectives in terms of recycling and enhancing the environment 
and promoting it as our unique selling point. 

4.2.5 North Devon Futures – This priority will focus on creating and enhancing 
communities and creating the environment for issues such as a recognised skills 
gap to be addressed.  Partnership working will be the key to a successful delivery 
and so this should be at the centre of any action plans.    

4.3    Whilst it is clearly important to have a Corporate Plan, it is also important to have a 
clear series of actions to deliver on those priorities.   

4.4   The Corporate Plan will not be time limited and will be kept under review at least 
every 12 months to ensure that it is still relevant. 

4.5    Performance against the identified actions will be measured as part of the Quarterly 
Business reports.  

4.6   A draft plan will be presented to the meeting, albeit not in any final form, for 
Members to consider the above priorities and to also consider what specific actions 
might be included.  It is important that those actions are realistic and time limited so 
that we can measure how well we are performing in delivering. 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

4.7   There are none. 

5 EQUALITY and HUMAN RIGHTS 

5.1  No issues arise from simply considering this report. 

6 CONSTITUTIONAL CONTEXT 

Article and 
paragraph 

Appendix and 
paragraph 

Referred or 
delegated 

power? 

A key 
decision? 

  Delegated  

7 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

7.1 List of background papers (but not including published works or those that disclose 
exempt or confidential information (as defined in rule 10 of appendix 15 (Access to 
Information Procedural Rules) and the advice of a Political Advisor/Assistant): 

 
Background papers will be available for inspection and will be kept by the author of 
the report. 

Page 14

Agenda Item 7



8 STATEMENT OF INTERNAL ADVICE 

8.1 The author (below) confirms that advice has been taken from all appropriate 
Councillors and officers. 

Author: Ken Miles    Date: 9th July 2019 

Reference: C:\Users\bt\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet 

Files\Content.Outlook\L92MQ3CV\Corporate plan.doc 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Annual Treasury Management report 2018/19
	7 Corporate Plan

